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H. Reviewing the content of each
letter, memorandum, and report written
by or on behalf of any director in his or
her capacity as an NADA director or on
NADA stationery in order to ensure its
adherence with this decree.

VIII. Certification
A. Within 75 days of the entry of this

Final Judgment, defendant shall certify
to plaintiff whether the defendant has
designated an Antitrust Compliance
Officer and has distributed the Final
Judgment in accordance with Section VI
(A) above.

B. For ten years after the entry of this
Final Judgment, on or before its
anniversary date, the defendant shall
file with the plaintiff an annual
statement as to the fact and manner of
its compliance with the provisions of
Sections VI and VII.

C. If defendant’s antitrust Compliance
Officer learns of any violations of any of
the terms and conditions contained in
this Final Judgment, defendant shall
immediately take appropriate action to
terminate or modify the activity so as to
comply with this Final Judgment.

IX. Plaintiff Access
A. For the purpose of determining or

securing compliance with this Final
Judgment, and for no other purpose,
duly authorized representatives of
plaintiff shall, upon written request of
the Attorney General or the Assistant
Attorney General in charge of the
Antitrust Division, and on reasonable
notice to the defendant, made to its
principal office, be permitted, subject to
any legally recognized privilege:

1. Access during the defendant’s
office hours to inspect and copy all
records and documents in the
possession or under the control of
defendant, which may have counsel
present, relating to any matters
contained in this Final Judgment; and

2. To interview the defendant’s
officers, employees and agents, who
may have counsel present, regarding
any such matters. The interviews shall
be subject to the defendant’s reasonable
convenience.

B. Upon the written request of the
Attorney General or the Assistant
Attorney General in charge of the
Antitrust Division made to defendant at
its principal office, defendant shall
submit such written reports, under oath
if requested, with respect to any of the
matters contained in this Final
Judgment as may be requested, subject
to any legally recognized privilege.

C. No information or documents
obtained by the means provided in this
Section VIII shall be divulged by any
representative of the Department of

Justice to any person other than a duly
authorized representative of the
Executive Branch of the United States,
except in the course of legal proceedings
to which the United States is a party, or
for the purpose of securing compliance
with this Final Judgment, or as
otherwise required by law.

D. If at the information or documents
are furnished by defendant to plaintiff,
defendant represents and identifies in
writing the material in any such
information or documents to which a
claim of protection may be asserted
under Rule 26(c)(7) of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure, and defendant marks
each pertinent page of such material,
‘‘Subject to claim of protection under
Rule 26(c)(7) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure,’’ then ten (10) days’
notice shall be give by plaintiff to
defendant prior to divulging such
material in any legal proceeding (other
than a grand jury proceeding), so that
defendant shall have an opportunity to
apply to this Court for protection
pursuant to Rule 26(c)(7) of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure.

X. Duration of Final Judgment

Except as otherwise provided
hereinabove, this Final Judgment shall
remain in effect until ten (10) years from
the date of entry.

XI. Construction, Enforcement,
Modification and Compliance

Jurisdiction is retained by the Court
for the purpose of enabling any of the
parties to this Final Judgment to apply
to this Court at any time for such further
orders or directions as may be necessary
or appropriate for the construction or
carrying out of this Final Judgment, for
the modification of any of its provisions,
for its enforcement or compliance, and
for the punishment of any violation of
its provisions.

XII. Public Interest

Entry of this Final Judgment is in the
public interest.
Dated: lllllllllllllllll

lllllllllllllllllllll

United States District Judge

Appendix A
On September 20, 1995, the Antitrust

Division of the United States Department of
Justice filed a civil suit that alleged that the
National Automobile Dealers Association
(‘‘NADA’’) had engaged in certain practices
that violated one section of the antitrust laws.
NADA denies that its conduct violated the
law. However, in order to avoid the delay,
expense and burden of protracted litigation,
NADA, without admitting any violation of
the law and without being subject to any
monetary penalties, has agreed to the entry
of a civil Consent Order to settle this matter.

This Consent Order applies to NADA and all
of its officers, directors, employees, agents,
and committee and task force members, but
not to dealers acting on their own.

Under the Consent Order, NADA may not
enter into, adhere to, or enforce any
agreement with any dealer to fix the prices
at which new cars are sold or offered. NADA
is also prohibited from recommending that
dealers (1) adopt specific prices or pricing
policies, specific margins, or specific
advertising policies relating to prices or costs
for automobile sales, (2) refrain from
adopting specific pricing systems or specific
policies relating to the advertising of prices
or costs for automobile sales, as invoice
advertising, and (3) refuse to do business or
reduce the amount of business they do with
particular people or types of people. NADA
is further prohibited from terminating from
membership any dealer based upon that
dealer’s prices or specific policies relating to
the advertising of prices or costs for
automobile sales. Failure to comply with this
Consent Order may result in conviction for
criminal contempt of court.

This Consent Order does not prohibit
NADA from continuing certain activities,
including publishing the N.A.D.A. Official
Used Car Guide, lobbying before legislatures
and regulatory agencies, offering dispute
resolution programs, including the
AUTOCAP program, educating members on
compliance with laws and regulations, and
presenting dealers’ views to manufacturers,
consumers or other interested parties in ways
that do not otherwise violate the Consent
Order.

Competitive Impact Statement

The United States of America,
pursuant to Section 2 of the Antitrust
Procedures and Penalties Act (‘‘APPA’’),
15 U.S.C. 16(b), submits this
Competitive Impact Statement regarding
the proposed Final Judgment submitted
for entry in this civil antitrust
proceeding.

1. Nature and Purpose of the Proceeding

On September 20, 1995, the United
States filed a civil antitrust complaint
under Section 4 of the Sherman Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 4, alleging that the
defendant, the National Automobile
Dealers Association (‘‘NADA’’), entered
into agreements intended to lessen
competition in the retail automobile
industry in violation of Section 1 of the
Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. 1. Specifically,
the complaint alleges that the NADA,
through its officers and directors:

(a) Agreed to orchestrate a group
boycott in an attempt to coerce
automobile manufacturers to decrease
the discounts offered to large volume
buyers and to eliminate consumer
rebates;

(b) Agreed to urge its dealer members
to maintain new vehicle inventories at
levels equal to 15–30 days’ supply;


